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RFP #8252 – Desktop Virtualization Proof-of-Concept / Pilot 

Vendor Questions and Answers 

1. Are there any special requirements, or registrations that need to be made in order to do business with the 

Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District? 

No.  

2. Will there be any team members from SRCSD that will be working with us on the POC? 

Yes. The RFP outlines the anticipated interaction with vendor and staff. 

3. What are the payment terms for the POC? 

Payment terms are in the RFP. 

4. Is there a website where I can get more information on this RFP? 

The RFP is the sole document. However, within the RFP there are references to the Regional San and 

SASD public websites. 

5. What is the VPN connectivity for end-users? Do they have wireless broadband? 

VPN is run by users from home or other off-site locations, with customers normally remoting in to their 

work PCs. DTech utilizes Pulse Secure software on the VPN portal and provides administration for the 

County.  Field crews at SASD use NetMotion Mobility for network connection. 

6. What is the current utilization rates of the existing 1 Gb/s WAN links? 

We anticipate there is enough capacity on the existing WAN for the Pilot. However, we expect as a part of 

the Pilot, for the vendor to help us gather information and perform analysis as to whether the network can 

handle a full rollout or would need upgrades. 

7. How readily can circuits be optimized, or, if necessary, upgraded to support the use of VDI across sites? 

We will make upgrades to circuits, if necessary, as quickly as we can. 

8. Are roaming profiles, desktop redirection, and/or mandatory profiles being used? 

The majority of our user profiles are local, but we do have several roaming profiles in use for Plant staff 

and SASD field crews that are migratory.  (30% – 40%) 

9. Does the Sanitation District and any of its peer entities and subordinate entities have pre-existing licensing 

arrangements with respect to Citrix and VMware? 

No, with respect to Citrix. Yes, with respect to VMware. 

10. Will any of the currently used software packages licenses be impacted by use on VDI? 

Not sure. We will need to analyze this as a part of the Pilot. 

11. Are there any hardware dongles required for use of existing software? 

No. 
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12. Is any type of smart-card technology used to access existing desktops? 

No. Logins are user credential based. 

13. Do all 7 copies of the proposal need to be signed (original contract and six copies)? 

Yes. 

14. Is it a requirement that the contractor use W-2 subcontractors, or are 1099 subcontractors allowed? 

Can be W-2 or 1099. 

15. How soon after the pilot do you anticipate rolling out production? 

Depends on the duration and success of the Pilot. If successful, we anticipate moving to production rollout 

as quickly as possible. 

16. Will that production rollout go to RFP? 

Yes. 

17. If so, does winning the pilot disqualify us from bidding on the production RFP? 

No. 

18. For the proposal, on page 7 (Endpoint hardware), will all 50 users be tested on Thin Clients? Or, can a 

small sample of various model Thin Clients be provided for evaluation, with the intent to use existing 

computers as endpoints throughout the pilot? 

Assume 30 thin clients and 20 existing computers for the Pilot. We would like enough variety in the thin 

client models to get an understanding of the features and functionality available on the market. 

19. What is the percentage breakdown of the 50 pilot users based on the User Types defined on Page 5? 

Please indicate which percentage of each type, to ensure that the hardware is properly sized. 

Assume the following: 

Standard desktop user: 40% 

High end desktop user: 40% 

Standard laptop user: 10% 

Field laptop user: 10% 

20. Is there a desire to evaluate ruggedized thin client endpoints for future use, or will the existing ruggedized 

systems be used for the pilot? 

We would like to test both. Including ruggedized thin client endpoints in the sample of thin clients would 

be good. 

21. For the Microsoft Windows OS, is 32 or 64-bit used? 

A mix of both on Windows 7.  However, we will be migrating to Windows 10 64-bit. 
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22. For the existing systems, how many cores is the typical configuration for Intel Xeon, i5 and i7? 

The HP Z-240 systems (current order spec) are Quad-core. 

23. For the existing systems, what is the average CPU Ghz clock speed used? 

3.30 GHz. 

24. For the existing systems, what is the average/typical maximum resolution being used by the single and 

dual monitors? 

Maximum resolution is 1920 x 1080.  Some lower resolutions might be 1280 x 720.  Varies by user. 

25. What software applications (from the list you provided) will need to be installed for the Pilot, to meet the 

minimum requirement? 

A mix of all applications, depending on user type. 

26. Will Regional SAN IT Staff take responsibility for installing software applications? 

Yes, with help from the vendor if we run into any VDI related issues. 


